

# Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

#### Reeve & Associates, Inc.

Solutions You Can Build On

#### Silver Summit Estates Huntsville, Utah

for



submitted to

Matt Lowe 6028 S. Ridgeline Dr. Ste 100 South Ogden UT 84405 PH: (801) 645-1044

Original: March 5, 2014

#### Reeve & Associates, Inc.

920 Chambers Street, Suite 14 Ogden, Utah 84403 801-621-3100 Fax 801-621-2666 www. reeve-assoc.com

Ref: 4825-08

#### **Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan**

#### for:

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### **Operator**(s):

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### **SWPPP** Contact(s):

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### **SWPPP Preparation Date:**

03/05 / 2014

**Estimated Project Dates:** 

Project Start Date: 04/01/2014 Project Completion Date: 04/01 / 2015

## Contents

SECTION	I 1: SITE EVALUATION, ASSESSMENT, AND PLANNING	1
1.1	Project/Site Information	
1.2	Contact Information/Responsible Parties	2
1.3	Nature and Sequence of Construction Activity	3
1.4	Soils, Slopes, Vegetation, and Current Drainage Patterns	3
1.5	Construction Site Estimates	4
1.6	Receiving Waters	4
1.7	Site Features and Sensitive Areas to be Protected	4
1.8	Potential Sources of Pollution	4
1.9	Endangered Species Certification	5
1.10	Historic Preservation	6
1.11	Applicable Federal, Tribal, State or Local Programs	6
1.12	Maps	6
1.13	Short Term and Long Term Goals	
SECTION	2: EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS	8
2.1	Minimize Disturbed Area and Protect Natural Features and Soil	8
2.2	Phase Construction Activity	8
2.3	Control Stormwater Flowing onto and through the Project	8
2.4	Stabilize Soils	9
2.5	Protect Slopes	9
2.6	Protect Storm Drain Inlets	9
2.7	Establish Perimeter Controls and Sediment Barriers	9
2.8	Retain Sediment On-Site	9
2.9	Establish Stabilized Construction Exits Error! Bookmark not define	d.
2.10	Additional BMPs	
SECTION	I 3: GOOD HOUSEKEEPING BMPS 1	10
3.1	Material Handling and Waste Management	
3.2	Establish Proper Building Material Staging Areas	1
3.3	Designate Washout Areas	1
3.4	Establish Proper Equipment/Vehicle Fueling and Maintenance Practices	
3.5	Control Equipment/Vehicle Washing	
3.6	Spill Prevention and Control Plan	
3.7	Any Additional BMPs	
3.8	Allowable Non-Stormwater Discharge Management	
	I 4: SELECTING POST-CONSTRUCTION BMPs 1	
SECTION	<b>1</b> 5: INSPECTIONS	
5.1	Inspections	
5.2	Delegation of Authority	5
5.3	Corrective Action Log	5
	I 6: RECORDKEEPING AND TRAINING 1	
6.1	Recordkeeping	
6.2	Log of Changes to the SWPPP	6
6.3	Training1	6

-	ECTION 7: FINAL STABILIZATION
S	SWPPP APPENDICES
	Appendix A – General Location Map
	Appendix B – Site Maps
	Appendix C – Construction General Permit
	Appendix D – NOI and Acknowledgement Letter from EPA/State
	Appendix E – Inspection Reports
	Appendix F – Corrective Action Log (or in Part 5.3)
	Appendix G – SWPPP Amendment Log (or in Part 6.2)
	Appendix H – Subcontractor Certifications/Agreements
	Appendix I – Grading and Stabilization Activities Log (or in Part 6.1)
	Appendix J – Training Log
	Appendix K – Delegation of Authority
	Appendix L – Additional Information (i.e., Endangered Species and Historic Preservation Documentation)

# SECTION 1: SITE EVALUATION, ASSESSMENT, AND PLANNING CERTIFICATION, AND SIGNATURE

#### 1.1 Project/Site Information

Project/Site Name: <u>Silver Summit Estates</u>	
Project Street/Location: 9150 East and 1300 Sout	h Street
City: <u>Huntsville</u>	State: <u>UT</u> ZIP Code: <u>84317</u>
County or Similar Subdivision: Weber County	
Latitude/Longitude (Use one of three possible for	mats, and specify method)
Latitude:	Longitude:
1. 41° 14' 49.06" N (degrees, minutes, seconds)	1. 111 ° 43' 49.06" W (degrees, minutes, seconds)
Method for determining latitude/longitude:	
USGS topographic map (specify scale: Other (please specify): <u>Google Earth</u>	) EPA Web site GPS
Is the project located in Indian country?	Zes No
If yes, name of Reservation, or if not part of a Res	servation, indicate "not applicable."
Is this project considered a federal facility?	Yes No
UPDES project or permit tracking number*:	
*(This is the unique identifying number assigned to your pro-	oject by your permitting authority after you have applied for

\*(This is the unique identifying number assigned to your project by your permitting authority after you have applied for coverage under the appropriate National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) construction general permit.)

#### 1.2 Contact Information/Responsable Parties

#### **Operator(s):**

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### **Project Manager(s) or Site Supervisor(s):**

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### **SWPPP** Contact(s):

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### This SWPPP was Prepared by:

Reeve & Associates, Inc. Nate Reeve, P.E. 920 Chambers Street, Suite 14 Ogden, UT 84403 801-621-3100 nreeve@reeve-assoc.com

#### 1.3 Nature and Sequence of Construction Activity

Describe the general scope of the work for the project, major phases of construction, etc: The general scope of the work for this project includes the construction of a new residential development. In this development, 13 new homes will be constructed along the north side of 1300 South, between 8800 E and 9400 E. The new road will be 9150 East Street. The 12-lot development will be constructed as a single phase.

What is the function of the construction activity?

Residential	Commercial	Industrial	Road Construction	Linear Utility
Other (please	specify):			
Estimated Project	t Start Date:	04/01/2	014	
Estimated Project	Completion Date:	04/01/2	015	

#### 1.4 Soils, Slopes, Vegetation, and Current Drainage Patterns

#### Soil type(s):

The main soil type on site is mainly loam soils. This soil type achieves a good balance between the ability to be very productive with minimum attention.

Slopes (describe current slopes and note any changes due to grading or fill activities):

The majority of the property is undeveloped. There is one large home current constructed on the property, which will remain. The general slope is in the south western direction with an average slope of 3%. The proposed grading for the site maintains similar slope. The slopes with their contour intervals can be found in Appendix B.

Drainage Patterns (describe current drainage patterns and note any changes dues to grading or fill activities):

Existing site drains from the northeast to the southwest, towards 1300 South, at an average slope of about 3%. The storm water sheet flows towards the intersection of 8800 East and 1300 South. No drainage facilities exist in the area. The native soils provide for rapid infiltration.

#### Vegetation:

Vegetation at the site consists primarily of native grasses and brush, a few well established trees resulting from the property's previous residential/agricultural use.

Other: NA

#### 1.5 Construction Site Estimates

The following are estimates of the construction site.

Total project area:	42.01 acres
Construction site area to be disturbed:	42.01 acres
Percentage impervious area before construction:	1.5%
Runoff coefficient before construction:	0.2
Percentage impervious area after construction:	6%
Runoff coefficient after construction	0.27
	(this calculation can be found in
	Appendix B with the Maps for
	further clarification)

#### 1.6 Receiving Waters

Description of receiving waters: There are no existing storm drain facilities in this area, and the historical flows sheet flow towards the intersection of 8800 East and 1300 South. The existing soils include about 2' of top soil that percolates at a rate of 27 mpi. Below the top soil there is a gravel type soil with percolation rates around 2.5 minutes per inch. Due to the fast percolation rates, the storm water infiltrates rapidly into the ground.

Description of storm sewer systems: Since not facilities exist, retention basins will be provided onsite to handle runoff generated by new development on the property.

Description of impaired waters or waters subject to TMDLs: Upon the review of the Integrated Report by the Utah Department of Environmental Quality, it was determined that there are neither impaired water sources nor waters subject to TMDLs in the surrounding area. Due to the size of the list, a copy has not been provided, but can be found at: http://www.waterquality.utah.gov/WQAssess/documents/IR2010/Part3/Final2010IR303(d)List.2.10.2012.pdf

Other: NA

#### 1.7 Site Features and Sensitive Areas to be Protected

Description of unique features that are to be preserved:

There are no unique areas that need to be preserved.

Describe measures to protect these features: NA

#### 1.8 Potential Sources of Pollution

Potential sources of sediment to stormwater runoff: Clearing and grubbing operations Grading and site excavation operations Vehicle Tracking Landscaping operations

Potential pollutants and sources, other than sediment, to stormwater runoff: Concrete Washout area Contraction Activities – paving, concrete pouring, building construction

Trade Name Material	Stormwater Pollutants	Location
Vehicles/Machinery	Gas/Oils/coolants	On-Site
Interior/Exterior Paint	Paint	On-Site
Construction Materials	Glues/foreign materials	On-Site
Sediment	Sediment	On-Site
Sanitary toilets	Waste	On-Site

#### 1.9 Endangered Species Certification

Are endangered or threatened species and critical habitats on or near the project area?

🗌 Yes 📃 No

Describe how this determination was made:

Through site visits and review of the provided list of endangered species in the Weber County area, there is no habitation on property that would accommodate any endangered or threatened species or critical habitats.

If yes, describe the species and/or critical habitat:

If yes, describe or refer to documentation that determines the likelihood of an impact on identified species and/or habitat and the steps taken to address that impact. (Note, if species are on or near your project site, EPA strongly recommends that the site operator work closely with the appropriate field office of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service or National Marine Fisheries Service. For concerns related to state or tribal listing of species, please contact a state or tribal official.)

NA

#### 1.10 Historic Preservation

Are there any historic sites on or near the construction site?

🗌 Yes 📃 No

Describe how this determination was made:

Through site visits and research online

(<u>http://www.nationalregisterofhistoricplaces.com/ut/Davis/state.html</u>) it was determined no historic sites are on or near the construction site.

If yes, describe or refer to documentation that determines the likelihood of an impact on this historic site and the steps taken to address that impact.

#### 1.11 Applicable Federal, Tribal, State or Local Programs

Note other applicable federal, tribal, state or local soil and erosion control and stormwater management requirements that apply:

Through site visits and research of the area to be developed, there are not additional requirements that apply.

#### 1.12 Maps

Include the site maps with the SWPPP. See Appendix B – Site Maps

#### 1.13 Short and Long Term Goals

The Short and Long Term Goals for this SWPPP should meet the following criteria for erosion and sediment control.

- The construction- phase erosion and sediment controls should be designed to retain sediment on-site to a maximum extent possible.
- All control measures must be properly installed and maintained with good engineering practices. If periodic inspections indicate a control has been used incorrectly the permittee must replace or modify the control appropriately.
- Off-site accumulations of sediment must be removed at a frequency sufficient to minimize off-site impacts.
- Sediment must be removed from sediment traps when design capacity has been reduced by 50%.

- Litter, construction debris, and construction chemicals exposed to storm water shall be prevented from becoming a pollutant source for storm water discharges.
- Off-site material storage areas (also including overburden and stockpiles of dirt, borrow areas, etc.) used solely by the permitted project are considered a part of the project and need to be addressed in the SWPPP.

#### **SECTION 2: EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS**

# 2.1 Minimize Disturbed Area and Protect Natural Features and Soil

Silt Fencing will be used to help protect the surrounding undisturbed area from the work that is being done on site.

#### 2.2 Phase Construction Activity

*BMP Description*: A silt fence will be placed prevent any sediment from runoff/debris from entering/exiting the project. See the SWPPP details for details.

Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspect frequently (bi-weekly).Remove sediment when reaches one-third the height of fence. Repair when damaged. Repair if not properly anchored.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

BMP Description: Construction Entrance w/ 8" compacted clean gravel		
Installation Schedule: Beginning of Construction		
Maintenance and Inspection:	Replenish or replace aggregate if clogged with sediment. Sweep street regularly.	
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor	

#### 2.3 Control Stormwater Flowing onto and through the Project

*BMP Description*: A silt fence will be placed prevent any sediment from runoff/debris from entering/exiting the project. See the SWPPP details for details.

Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspect frequently (bi-weekly).Remove sediment when reaches one-third the height of fence. Repair when damaged. Repair if not properly anchored.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 2.4 Stabilize Soils

BMP Description: 2" cut backs along all sidewalk locations		
Permanent	⊠ Temporary	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction (as determined by the Contractor)	
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspect frequently (bi-weekly) and after each rainfall, remove accumulated sediment, replace if damaged.	
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor	

#### 2.5 Protect Slopes

*BMP Description:* A silt fence will be placed prevent any sediment from runoff/debris from entering/exiting the project. See the SWPPP details for details.

Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspect frequently (bi-weekly).Remove sediment when reaches one-third the height of fence. Repair when damaged. Repair if not properly anchored.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 2.6 Protect Storm Drain Inlets

NA

#### 2.7 Establish Perimeter Controls and Sediment Barriers

*BMP Description:* A silt fence will be placed prevent any sediment from runoff/debris from entering/exiting the project. See the SWPPP details for details.

Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Remove sediment when reaches one-third the height of fence. Replace when damaged. Replace if not properly anchored.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

BMP Description: Cut Back and Excavation at each Lot	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction of each Lot
Maintenance and	Each lot will contain perimeter controls and sediment barriers by
Inspection:	processes of cutting back and excavating 2".
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 2.8 Retain Sediment On-Site

*BMP Description*: A silt fence will be placed prevent any sediment from runoff/debris from entering/exiting the project. See the SWPPP details for details.

Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspect frequently (bi- weekly).Remove sediment when reaches one-third the height of fence. Repair when damaged. Repair if not properly anchored.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

BMP Description: Cut Back and Excavation at each Lot	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction of each Lot
Maintenance and Inspection:	Each lot will contain perimeter controls and sediment barriers by processes of cutting back and excavating 4'.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 2.9 Establish Stabilized Construction Exits

BMP Description: Construction Entrance w/ 8" compacted clean gravel	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Replenish or replace aggregate if clogged with sediment. Sweep street regularly.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 2.10 Additional BMPs

<b>BMP Description: NONE</b>	
Installation Schedule:	
Maintenance and	
Inspection:	
Responsible Staff:	

#### **SECTION 3: GOOD HOUSEKEEPING BMPS**

#### 3.1 Material Handling and Waste Management

BMP Description: On Site Portable Toilet	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction

Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspect frequently to ensure facility stays clean and all necessary products are provided.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

BMP Description: Onsite Dumpster for construction refuse	
Installation Schedule:	A dumpster will be placed on site to collect all construction refuse. The dumpster will be removed at the end of construction.
Maintenance and Inspection:	The dumpster will be of sufficient size and number to contain the construction refuse generated by the project. The dumpster will be inspected, maintained, and emptied as needed.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 3.2 Establish Proper Building Material Staging Areas

BMP Description: No onsite staging will be allowed on the Project Site	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspection will be done by Contractor to ensure that no onsite fueling will be done.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 3.3 Designate Washout Areas

NA

#### 3.4 Establish Proper Equipment/Vehicle Fueling and Maintenance Practices

BMP Description: No Onsite Fueling will be allowed on the Project Site.	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspection will be done by Contractor to ensure that no onsite fueling will be done.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 3.5 Control Equipment/Vehicle Washing

BMP Description: No onsite washing will be allowed on the Project Site.	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction
Maintenance and	Inspection will be done by Contractor to ensure that no onsite

Inspection:	fueling will be done.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### 3.6 Spill Prevention and Control Plan

#### **Minor Spills**

Minor spills are those which are likely to be controlled by on-site personnel. After contacting local emergency response agencies, the following actions should occur upon discovery of a minor spill:

-Contain the spread of the spill

-If the spill occurs on paved or impermeable surfaces, clean up using 'dry' methods (i.e. absorbent material, cat litter, and/or rags)

-If the spill occurs in dirt areas, immediately contain the spill by constructing an earth dike. Dig up properly dispose of contaminated soil.

#### 3.7 Any Additional BMPs

BMP Description: NA	
Installation Schedule:	
Maintenance and Inspection:	
Responsible Staff:	

#### 3.8 Allowable Non-Stormwater Discharge Management

*BMP Description:* Dust Control will be implemented as needed once site grading has begun and during windy conditions while site grading is occurring.

Installation Schedule:	During Construction
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

#### **SECTION 4: SELECTING POST-CONSTRUCTION BMPs**

BMP Description: Retention Basin	
Installation Schedule:	During installation of the storm drain system
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspection will be done by Contractor/owner regularly to ensure functionality of the basin.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor/Owner

BMP Description: Retention Basin Landscaped (Sod)	
Installation Schedule:	Upon completion of the Retention basin
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspection will be done by Contractor/owner regularly to ensure basin is functioning to meet the designed purpose.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor/Owner

#### **SECTION 5: INSPECTIONS**

#### 5.1 Inspections

1. Inspection Personnel:

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

#### 2. Inspection Schedule and Procedures:

Inspections will be done bi-weekly, to the specifications of the document, on the date and time as specified by the Hired Contractor,

SWPPP BMPs (installation/maintenance)

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

Final Stabilizations

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

> Attach a copy of the inspection report you will use for your site. Appendix E-Inspection Reports

#### 5.2 Delegation of Authority

**Duly Authorized Representative(s) or Position(s):** 

Matt Lowe 801-645-1044 6028 South Ridgeline Dr. Ste. 100 South Ogden, UT 84405

Attach a copy of the signed delegation of authority form in Appendix K.

#### 5.3 Corrective Action Log

Corrective Action Log:

### **SECTION 6: RECORDKEEPING AND TRAINING**

#### 6.1 Recordkeeping

Records will be retained for a minimum period of at least 3 years after the permit is terminated.

Date(s) when major grading activities occur:

Date(s) when construction activities temporarily or permanently cease on a portion of the site:

Date(s) when an area is either temporarily or permanently stabilized:

#### 6.2 Log of Changes to the SWPPP

Log of changes and updates to the SWPPP

#### 6.3 Training

Individual(s) Responsible for Training:

Describe Training Conducted:

- General stormwater and BMP awareness training for staff and subcontractors:
- Detailed training for staff and subcontractors with specific stormwater responsibilities:

## **SECTION 7: FINAL STABILIZATION**

If Final Stabilization does not meet 70% Vegetation, then the appropriate BMPs will be implemented to prevent any sediment or storm water from pass through the site.

These BMP's are site specific and are determined by the Hired Contractor. The BMP's may include, Silt Fence, Straw Wattle, Sand Bags, Geotextile Fabrics, Soil Stabilizers, and Vegetation Seeding and Planting.

BMP Description: Cut Back and Excavation at each Lot	
Installation Schedule:	Beginning of Construction of each Lot
Maintenance and Inspection:	Each lot will contain perimeter controls and sediment barriers by processes of cutting back and excavating 4'.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor

BMP Description: Retention Basin	
Installation Schedule:	During installation of the storm drain system
Maintenance and Inspection:	Inspection will be done by Contractor/owner regularly to ensure functionality of the basin
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor/Owner

BMP Description: Vegetation-Seeding of Retention Basin	
Installation Schedule:	Upon completion of the Retention basin
Maintenance and Inspection:	Hired Contractor to maintain all work until all work is complete and accepted by the Owner. Maintenance shall include mowing, weeding, fertilizing, cleaning, ect.
Responsible Staff:	Hired Contractor/Owner

### **SECTION 8: CERTIFICATION AND NOTIFICATION**

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

Name:	Title:
Signature:	Date:

#### **SWPPP APPENDICES**

Attach the following documentation to the SWPPP:

Appendix A – General Location Map Appendix B – Site Maps Appendix C – Construction General Permit Appendix D – NOI and Acknowledgement Letter from EPA/State Appendix E – Inspection Reports Appendix F – Corrective Action Log (or in Part 5.3) Appendix G – SWPPP Amendment Log (or in Part 6.2) Appendix H – Subcontractor Certifications/Agreements Appendix I – Grading and Stabilization Activities Log (or in Part 6.1)

Appendix J – Training Log

Appendix K – Delegation of Authority

Appendix L – Additional Information (i.e., Endangered Species and Historic Preservation Documentation)

## Appendix A – General Location Map



Appendix B – Site Maps





# Notes:

Describe all BMP's to protect storm water inlets: All storm water inlets to be protected by straw wattle barriers, or gravel bags (see detail)

- Describe BMP's to eliminate/reduce contamination of storm water from:
- Equipment / To be perform
- building / concrete wash areas: med in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence barriers. nated by soil ameniments: initiates are found or generated, contact environmental engineer and contacts listed. minates are found or generated, contact environmental engineer and contacts listed.
- be performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. Incle performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. The performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. The performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. The performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. The performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. The performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. The performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence.
- e parking areas: performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. ials storage areas: ials storage areas: performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence. containment areas: performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence.
- vice areas: be performed in designated areas only and surrounded with silt fence
- 's for wind erosion: . .ckpiles and site as needed to be watered regularly to eliminate / control wind

erosion

a. Maintenance

4 μ

- Maintain all construction equipment to prevent oil or other fluid leaks. Keep vehicles and equipment clean, prevent excessive build-up of oil and grease. Regularly inspect on-site vehicles and equipment for leaks, and repair immediately. Check incoming vehicles and equipment (including delivery trucks, and employee and subcontractor vehicles) for leaking oil and fluids. Do not allow leaking vehicles or equipment on-site. Segregate and recycle wastes, such as greases, used oil or oil filters, antifreeze, cleaning solutions, automotive batteries, hydraulic, and transmission fluids.
- Fueling
- If fueling must occur on-site, use designated areas away from drainage. Locate on-site fuel storage tanks within a berned area designed to hold the tank volume. Cover retention area with an impervious material and install in in a manner to ensure that any spiils contained in the retention area. To catch spills or leaks when removing or changing fluids. Use drip pans for any oil or fluid changes. ¥: be
- Wash Sise as little water as possible to avoid installing erosion and sediment controls for the wash area. I washing must occur on-eite, use designated, berned wash areas to prevent waste water discharge into form water, creats, rivers, and other water bodies. Use phosphate-rise, biodegradable scops. Yo not permit steam cleaning on-site.
- Use Do
- a. Spill Prevent Minor Minor

μ

- materials, dispose r spills are those which are likely to be controlled by on-site personnel. After contacting local emergency prose agencies, the following actions should accur upon discovery of a minor spill: Contain the spread of the spill. If the spill occurs on poved or impermeable surfaces, clean up using "dry" methods (i.e. absorbent if the spill occurs in dirt areas, immediately contain the spill by constructing an earth dike. Dig up property se of contaminated soil, acover the impacted area to avoid runoff. Report all steps taken to report and contain spill.

- e personnel should not attempt to control major spills until the appropriate and qualified emergency se staff have arrived at the site. For spills of federal reportable quantities, also notify the National rse Center at (800) 424-4802. A written report should be sent to all notified authorities. Failure to report spills can result in significant fines and penalties.
- way / Utility Construction in good housekeening 9 or course
- d.c.b.a.Post /aintain go

- Initian good housekeeping practices. close or cover huiding material storage areas. sperly store materials such as paints and solvents. ord mixing excess amounts of fresh concrete or cement on-site. if orm washout of concrete trucks offsite or in designated areas only. not wash out concrete trucks into storem drain goen diches, streets or streams. not place material or debris into streams, gutters or catch basins that stop or reduce the flow of runoff truct
- All public streets and storm drain facilities shall be maintained free of building materials, mud and debris caused by grading or construction operations. Roads will be swept within 1000' of construction entrance daily
- if necessary, wattle around all inlets contained within the development and all others that receive runoff from the Install straw wattle around all inlets contained within the development and all others that receive runoff from the on Control Plan Notes an anomalo on americance contained that can be reached 24 hours a day 7 days a week.
- erosion b. T
- 0 The contractor will designate an emergency contact that can be reached 24 hours a day 7 days a week. A stand-by crew for emergency work shall be available at all times during potential rain or snow runoff events. Necessary materials shall be available on site and stockpiled at convenient locations to facilitate rapid construction of nerrogency devices when rain or runoff is eminent. Erosion control devices shall not not be plans and approved for the project may not be removed without approval of the engineer of record. If devices are removed, no work may continue that have the potential of erosion without consulting the engineer of record. If devices are removed, no work may continue that have the potential of erosion without consulting Staded areas adjacent to fill slopes located at the site perimetrum be reastabilished before this work begins. Staded areas adjacent to fill slopes located at the site perimetrum that may from the top of the slope at the conclusion of each working day. this should be confirmed by survey or other means acceptable to the engineer of record.
- <u>a</u>
- If still and debris shall be removed from all devices within 24 hours after each rain or runaff event. Sucept as otherwise opproved by the inspector, all removable protective devices shown shall be in place at the end of ach working day and through weeknds until removable system is approved. It loose soil and debris, which may create a potential hazard to offsite property, shall be removed from the site as rected by the Engineer of record of the governing agency.
- 앜
- basins may not be removed or made inoperable without the approval of the engineer of record and the
- Š ontrol d the devices will be modified as need as the project progresses, and plans of these changes submitted for or engineer of record and the governing agency.

Cross

Section

50 0

×

20' Construction Entrance

W/ 8" COMPACTED 2"-4" Ø GRAVEL

BASE

OVER WOVEN GEOTECH FABRIC

50'x20' CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

œ

c. b. c. Cond uct a minimum of one inspection of the erosion and sediment controls every two weeks. Maintain documentation on site. Part III.D.4 of general permit UIR300000 identifies the minimum inspection requirements. Part II.D.4.C identifies the minimum inspection report requirements. failure to complete and/or document storm water inspections is a violation of part III.D.4 of Utah General Permit UTR failure 300000

## LINE THE SIDE AND BOTTOM -OF THE TRENCH WITH THE BOTTOM END OF THE FILTER FABRIC AND BACKFILL WITH EXCAVATED SOIL GEOTEXTILE ATTACHED TO POST SHEET FLOV 6" MIN EXISTING GRADE WOOD POST OR STAKE

# Section

# **Perspective View**

- INSTALLATION The silt fence should be installed prior to major soil disturbances in the drainage area. The fence should be placed across the sippe along a line of uniform elevation wherever flow of sedament is anticipated. Table 1 shows generally-recommended maximum slope lengths (slope spacing between fences) at various site grades for most silt fence anplications. should generally be less than three (3) times the height of the fence. \* If a steel or plastic mesh is required to rein-of force the geotextile. It shoul have a minimum mesh opening of 15.2cm (6), at "casten the mesh to the upslope side of the posts using heavy duty wire staples, the wires or hog stringes. Extend the mesh into the bottom at the tench.
- Slope Recommended (Richardson & Mid lope Steepness N (%) <2% 2-5% TABLE 1 Maximum or Silt Fer Middlebrooks, 1991) Max. Slope Lengt m (ft) Slope Lengths Length

INSPECTION \*Inspect the silt fence of rainfall, immediately af

"The geotextile shall then be stapled or wired to the posts. An extra 20-50cm (8-20") of geotextile shall extend into the trench.

EFABRICATED SILT FENCE ROLLS 10-20% >20% 30.5m (100ft) 22.9m (75ft) 15.2m (50ft) 7.6m (25ft) 4.5m (15ft)

"Inspect the sill fence daily during periods of rainfal, immediately after significant rainfall event and weekly during periods of no rainfall. Make any repairs immediately.
"When sediment deposits behind the silt fence are one-third of the fence height, remove and properly dispose of the sill accumulations Avoid damage to the fabric during cleanout.

- (5.8%) trend the desired location. (6.8%) trend the desired location. (6.8%) trend the satisfield location. (6.8%) trend the satisfield location. (6.8%) trend the satisfield location in the satisfield the end post of one fence into the other. Before nesting the end posts, rotate each post until the gedexitle is wropped complety around the post, then abut the end posts to create a tight seal as
- eight Figure 1. s into the ground until the required pht and/or anchorage depth is
- iny the loose geotextile at the bottom of the nee in the upstream trench and backfill th natural sait, transpring the backfill to worde good compaction and anchorage. gure 2 illustrates a typical site force stallation and anchor trench placement.

# Silt Fence Detail

NONE



Roll Figure 1: Top View of -to-Roll Connection

Field ASSEMBLY: "Esconde a minimum 15.2cm x 15.2cm (5.46) trench at the desired location. "Dire wooden posts, or stell posts with fasten-ing projections, against the dawnstream wall ing projections, against the dawnstream wall be 2.4-J.3m (6-107). Post spacing should be 2.4-J.3m (6-107). Post spacing

# g



THESE FUNS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE THE PROPERTY OF REDUCE & ASSOCIATES, INC., 920 CHAMBERS STREET \$14, 03DEN, UTAH 84403, AND SHALL NOT BE PHOTOCOPHED, RE-DRAWN, OR USED ON ANY PROJECT OTHER THAN THE PROJECT SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED FOR, WITHOUT THER WRITTEN PERMISSION. THE OWNERS AND ENGINEERS OF REPLE & ASSOCIATES, INC. OSICIAM ANY LUBILITY FOR ANY CHA

#### Revised: 03-05-14



Appendix C – Construction General Permit

#### STATE OF UTAH DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY DIVISION OF WATER QUALITY

#### Authorization to Discharge Under the Utah Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

#### Storm Water General Permit for Construction Activities Permit No. UTR300000

This Permit is issued in compliance with the provisions of the Utah Water Quality Act, Title 19, Chapter 5, Utah Code Annotated 2004, as amended (the "Act") and the federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 *et. seq.*, as amended to date), and the rules and Regulations made pursuant to those statutes.

This Permit authorizes storm water discharges to waters of the State of Utah resulting from construction activities, including construction support activities, anywhere within the State of Utah as provided in Parts 1.4 and 1.5 of this Permit. This authorization is conditioned upon a discharger meeting the eligibility requirements in Part 1.2.2 of this Permit, including preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan <u>prior</u> to filing a Notice of Intent ("NOI") to discharge under this General Permit. A discharger is not covered by this Permit if the discharger submits an NOI but has not met these conditions.

This authorization is subject to the authority of the Utah Water Quality Board or the Executive Secretary of the Utah Water Quality Board to reopen this Permit (*see* Part 5.15 of this Permit), or to require a discharger to obtain an individual permit or use an alternative general permit (*see* Part 2.3 of this Permit). The issuance of a discharge permit authorization under this general Permit does not relieve Permittees of other duties and responsibilities under the Act or rules made under that Act. Significant terms used in this Permit are defined in Part 6 of this Permit.

This Permit shall become effective on July 1, 2008.

This Permit and the authorization to discharge shall expire at midnight, June 30, 2013, except as described in Part 2.4 of this Permit.

Signed this 26<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2008.

Walter L. Baker, P.E.

Executive Secretary, Utah Water Quality Board

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1:	PERMIT SCOPE AND COVERAGE	3
1.1	Persons Required to Obtain Authorization for Discharge.	3
1.2	Permit Area and Eligibility.	3
1.3	Authorization to Discharge.	3
1.4	Allowable Storm Water Discharges	3
1.5.	Allowable Non-storm Water Discharges.	4
1.6	Discharges Not allowed Under This Permit	4
1.7	Authorization to Discharge Date	5
1.8	Notice of Intent	
1.9	Coverage Before October 1, 2008	5
1.10	Late Notifications	
	SPECIAL CONDITIONS, MANAGEMENT PRACTICES,	
	SIBILITIES, AND OTHER NON-NUMERIC LIMITATIONS	
2.1	Releases in Excess of Reportable Quantities.	
2.2	Discharge Compliance with Water Quality Standards and TMDL Requirements	
2.3	Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alternative General Permit	
2.4	Continuation of the Expired General Permit	
PART 3.	STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLANS	
3.1.	SWPPP Required.	
3.2.	SWPPP Location, Availability, Revision, and Signature	
3.3.	Keeping SWPPPs Current	
3.4.	More Than One Permittee	
3.5.	Contents of SWPPP.	
	TERMINATION/CHANGES IN OWNER/OPERATOR FOR SITE	
4.1.	Termination of Coverage	
4.2.	Conditions for Submitting an NOT.	19
4.3.	Updating the SWPPP	•••
PART 5.		
5.1.	Duty to.Comply	
5.2.	Duty to Reapply.	
5.3.	Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense.	
5.4.	Duty to Mitigate Duty to Provide Information	20
5.5. 5.6.	Other Information.	
5. <del>0</del> . 5.7.	Oil and Hazardous Substance Liability	
5.7. 5.8.	Property Rights.	
5.8. 5.9.	Severability	
5.10.	Record Retention	
5.11.	Addresses.	
5.11.	State Laws.	
5.12.	Proper Operation and Maintenance	
5.14.	Inspection and Entry	
5.15	Reopener Clause.	
5.16.	Signatory Requirements	
	DEFINITIONS	

#### PART 1: PERMIT SCOPE AND COVERAGE

- 1.1 <u>Persons required to obtain authorization for discharge</u>. No person may conduct construction activities that disturb an area greater than or equal to one acre without authorization for storm water discharge from the Executive Secretary. (*See* Utah Admin. Code Sections R317-8-3.9(6)(d)(10) and R317-8-3.9(6)(e)(1).) In addition, no person may conduct construction activities that disturb an area smaller than one acre if the disturbance is part of a larger common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb an area greater than or equal to one acre. *Id. See* Part 6.5 of this Permit for a definition of "construction activities."
- 1.2 Permit Area and Eligibility.
  - 1.2.1. Construction activities located within the State of Utah, except for Indian Country (*see* Part 6.16 of this Permit for a definition of "Indian Country") may be eligible to be covered under this Permit.
  - 1.2.2. Eligibility for authorization to discharge under this Permit is conditioned upon:
    - a. Preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") (see Part 3 of this permit) prior to submission of a Notice of Intent ("NOI");
    - b. Submission of a complete and a ccurate Notice of Intent to be covered by this Permit (see Part 1.8 of this Permit); and
    - c. Payment of applicable fees.
- 1.3 <u>Authorization to Discharge</u>. This Permit authorizes discharges of storm water from construction activities that disturb an area greater than or equal to one acre, and from construction activities that disturb an area smaller than one acre if the disturbance is part of a larger common plan of development or sale that will ultimately disturb an area greater than or equal to one acre. This authorization is subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Permit, including the requirement that the discharger must submit a Notice of Intent ("NOI"), and the prohibitions on discharges specified in Part 1.6.
- 1.4 <u>Allowable Storm Water Discharges</u>. Subject to compliance with the terms and conditions of this Permit, a Permittee is authorized to discharge pollutants in:
  - 1.4.1. Storm water associated with construction activity as that term is defined in Part 6.5 of this Permit (but see Part 1.4.3 of this Permit for limitations on discharges from construction support activities);
  - 1.4.2. Storm water discharges designated by the Executive Secretary as needing a storm water permit under R317-8-3.9(6)(e)(2);
  - 1.4.3. Discharges from construction support activities as that term is defined in Part 6.6 of this Permit, provided:
    - a. The support activity is directly related to the construction site required to have UPDES permit coverage for discharges of storm water associated with construction activity;
    - b. The support activity is not a commercial operation serving multiple unrelated construction projects by different owners/operators, and does not operate beyond the completion of the construction activity at the last construction project it supports; and
    - c. Appropriate controls and measures are identified in a Storm Water Pollution

Prevention Plan (SWPPP) covering the discharges from the support activity areas; and

- 1.4.4. Discharges composed of allowable discharges listed in Part 1.4 and 1.5 of this Permit commingled with a discharge authorized by a different UPDES permit and/or a discharge that does not require UPDES permit authorization.
- 1.5. <u>Allowable Non-storm Water Discharges</u>. A Permittee is authorized to make the following non-storm water discharges, provided the non-storm water component of the discharge is in compliance with Part 3.5.5 of this Permit:
  - 1.5.1. Discharges from fire-fighting activities;
  - 1.5.2. Fire hydrant flushings;
  - 1.5.3. Waters used to wash vehicles where detergents are not used;
  - 1.5.4. Water used to control dust in accordance with Part 3.5.2(c)(2);
  - 1.5.5. Potable water including uncontaminated water line flushings;
  - 1.5.6. Routine external building wash down that does not use detergents;
  - 1.5.7. Pavement wash waters where spills or leaks of toxic or hazardous materials have not occurred (unless all spilled material has been removed) and where detergents are not used;
  - 1.5.8. Uncontaminated air conditioning or compressor condensate;
  - 1.5.9. Uncontaminated ground water or spring water;
  - 1.5.10. Foundation or footing drains where flows are not contaminated with process materials such as solvents;
  - 1.5.11. Landscape and other irrigation drainage.
- 1.6 <u>Discharges not allowed under this Permit</u>. Notwithstanding any other language in this Permit, the following storm water discharges are not authorized by this Permit:
  - 1.6.1. <u>Discharges from Construction Activities within Indian Country</u>. This Permit does not cover discharges within Indian Country as that term is defined in Part 6.16 of this Permit;<sup>1</sup>
  - 1.6.2. <u>Post Construction Discharges</u>. Storm water discharges that originate from the site after construction activities have been completed and the site has undergone final stabilization;
  - 1.6.3. <u>Discharges Mixed with Non-storm Water</u>. Discharges that are mixed with sources of non-storm water other than discharges which are identified in Part 1.5 of this Permit and in compliance with Part 3.5.5 (non-storm water discharges) of this Permit;
  - 1.6.4. <u>Discharges Covered by Another Permit</u>. Storm water discharges associated with construction activity for which an individual permit has been issued, or for which the owner/operator is required to or may obtain coverage under an individual permit or an alternative general permit (*see* Part 2.3 of this Permit), including a general

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The State of Utah, *Division of Water Quality*, does not have permit authority for Indian Country. Storm water permits for Indian Country within the State must be acquired through EPA Region VIII, except for facilities on the Navajo Reservation or on the Goshute Reservation which must acquire storm water permits through EPA Region IX.

permit issued for areas regulated by a qualified municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Program;

- 1.6.5. <u>Discharges Threatening Water Quality</u>. Storm water discharges from construction activities that cause or have the reasonable potential to cause a violation of a water quality standard. *See* Part 2.2 of this Permit;
- 1.6.6. <u>Discharges from commercial construction support and related activities</u>. Storm water discharges from construction support activities unless they are included within the definition in Part 6.6 of this permit;
- 1.6.7. <u>Spills</u>. This Permit does not authorize the discharge of hazardous substances or oil resulting from an on-site spill; and
- 1.6.8. Discharges that result from violations of this Permit.
- 1.7 Authorization to Discharge Date.
  - 1.7.1. This permit is effective as of July 1, 2008 and is effective for five years, expiring at 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2013.
  - 1.7.2. Unless notified by the Executive Secretary to the contrary, a discharger is authorized for coverage under this Permit and may begin construction activities immediately after preparing a SWPPP for the construction activities (see Part 1.2.2(a) of this Permit), and after submitting an NOI and permit fee (see Part 1.2.2(b) and (c) of this Permit). The date of submission of the NOI or a permit fee shall be the date of its receipt by the Executive Secretary, or the date the NOI or permit fee are submitted electronically using the website for the Utah Division of Water Quality. Any NOIs mailed to the Executive Secretary shall be mailed to the address specified in Part 5.11 of this Permit.
  - 1.7.3. The Executive Secretary may, with written notice (including electronic notice) delay authorization to verify an applicant's eligibility or resolve other concerns. In these instances, a discharger is not authorized for coverage under this permit until it receives notice from the Executive Secretary.
- 1.8 Notice of Intent
  - 1.8.1. A person who wishes to submit an NOI must use the NOI form provided by the Executive Secretary (or a copy thereof), or submit an NOI electronically (see (https://secure.utah.gov/stormwater/)).
  - 1.8.2. All questions in an NOI form provided by the Executive Secretary or answered in the course of submitting an NOI electronically must be answered completely and accurately.
  - 1.8.3. The NOI, whether on the form provided by the Executive Secretary or submitted electronically, must include a certification statement, and must be signed and dated by an authorized representative as specified in Part 5.16 of this Permit.
- 1.9 <u>Coverage before June 30, 2010</u>. Permittee's that previously received authorization to discharge under the October 1, 2002 General Permit (2002 General Permit) and still have active coverage shall without submission of an NOI continue coverage under UTR200000 until June 30, 2010 at which time, or before if desired, the Permittee shall, by submission of an NOI (either on-line <u>www.waterquality.utah.gov/updes/stormwatercon.htm</u> or by paper submission) obtain coverage under this Permit (UTR300000).

Utah Division of Water Quality General Permit No. UTR 300000 Part 1

1.10 <u>Late Notifications</u>. Persons are not prohibited from submitting NOIs after initiating clearing, grading, excavation activities, or other construction activities. When a late NOI is submitted, authorization for discharges occurs consistent with Subpart 2.1. The Agency reserves the right to take enforcement action for any un-permitted discharges that occur between the commencement of construction and discharge authorization.

#### PART 2. SPECIAL CONDITIONS, MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND OTHER NON-NUMERIC LIMITATIONS

- 2.1 <u>Releases in excess of Reportable Quantities</u>. The discharge of hazardous substances or oil in the storm water discharge(s) from a site shall be prevented or minimized in accordance with the applicable SWPPP for the site. This Permit does not relieve the Permittee of the reporting requirements of 40 CFR part 117, 40 CFR 110, and 40 CFR part 302. Where a release containing a hazardous substance in an amount equal to or in excess of a reportable quantity established under either 40 CFR 117, 40 CFR 110, or 40 CFR 302, occurs during a 24 hour period:
  - 2.1.1. The Permittee is required to notify the National Response Center (NRC) (800-424-8802) in accordance with the requirements of 40 CFR 117, 40 CFR 110, and 40 CFR 302 and the Division of Water Quality (DWQ) (801-538-6146) or the 24 hour DWQ answering service at 801-536-4123 as soon as he or she has knowledge of the discharge;
  - 2.1.2. The Permittee shall submit within 14 calendar days of knowledge of the release a written description of: the release (including the type and estimate of the amount of material released), the date that such release occurred, the circumstances leading to the release, the measures taken and/or planned to be taken to cleanup the release, and steps to be taken to minimize the chance of future occurrences to the Executive Secretary; and
  - 2.1.3. The SWPPP required under Part 3 of this Permit must be modified within 14 calendar days of knowledge of the release to provide a description of the release, the circumstances leading to the release, and the date of the release. In addition, the SWPPP must be reviewed to identify measures to prevent the reoccurrence of such releases and to respond to such releases, and the SWPPP must be modified where appropriate.
- 2.2 <u>Discharge Compliance with Water Quality Standards and TMDL requirements</u>. Storm water discharges from construction activities that cause or have the reasonable potential to cause a violation of a water quality standard or a violation of Total Maximum Daily Load ("TMDL") requirements are not authorized by this Permit. If there is a TMDL requirement for the receiving water, that requirement, rather than a water quality standard, will govern. If a discharge that would otherwise be covered by this Permit causes a violation or if there is a reasonable potential a discharge will cause a violation, the Permitteee will take all necessary actions to ensure future discharges do not cause or contribute to the violation of a water quality standard or a TMDL requirement, and shall document these actions in the SWPPP.

If the Executive Secretary determines that construction activities have caused or have the reasonable potential to cause a violation of a water quality standard or a TMDL requirement, the discharger will be notified by the Executive Secretary of additional requirements for treatment or handling of the discharge to ensure future discharges do not cause or contribute to the violation. The Permittee will document these requirements in the SWPPP. The Executive Secretary may authorize continued coverage under this Permit after appropriate controls and implementation procedures, designed to bring the discharges

Utah Division of Water Quality General Permit No. UTR 300000 Part 2

into compliance with water quality standards or TMDL requirements, have been included in the SWPPP.

Alternatively, the Executive Secretary may notify the Permittee that an individual permit application is necessary (see Part 2.3 of this Permit).

If violations remain or re-occur, then coverage under this Permit may be terminated by the Executive Secretary and an alternative permit may be issued or denied. Compliance with this requirement does not preclude any enforcement activity as provided by the Water Quality Act for the underlying violation.

- 2.3 Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alternative General Permit.
  - 2.3.1. The Executive Secretary may require any person authorized by this Permit to apply for and/or obtain either an individual UPDES permit or an alternative UPDES general permit. Any interested person may petition the Executive Secretary to take action under this paragraph. Where the Executive Secretary requires a discharger authorized to discharge under this Permit to apply for an individual UPDES permit, the Executive Secretary shall notify the discharger in writing that a permit application is required. This notification shall include a brief statement of the reasons for this decision, an application form or reference to the application requirements, a statement setting a deadline for the discharger to file the application, and a statement that on the effective date of issuance or denial of the individual UPDES permit or the alternative general permit as it applies to the individual Permittee, coverage under this general Permit shall automatically terminate. Applications shall be submitted to the address of the Division of Water Quality shown in Part 5.11 of this Permit. The Executive Secretary may grant additional time to submit the application upon request of the applicant. If a discharger fails to submit in a timely manner an individual UPDES permit application as required by the Executive Secretary under this paragraph, then the applicability of this Permit to the individual UPDES permittee is automatically terminated at the end of the day specified for application submittal.
  - 2.3.2. Any discharger authorized by this Permit may request to be excluded from the coverage of this Permit by applying for an individual permit. In such cases, the discharger shall submit an individual application in accordance with the requirements of Utah Administrative Code ("UAC") R317-8-3.9(2)(b)2 with reasons supporting the request, to the Executive Secretary at the address for the Division of Water Quality in Part 5.11 of this Permit. The request may be granted by issuance of any individual permit or an alternative general permit if the reasons cited by the Permittee are adequate to support the request.
  - 2.3.3. When an individual UPDES permit is issued to a discharger who would otherwise be subject to this Permit, or the discharger is authorized to discharge under an alternative UPDES general permit, the applicability of this Permit to the individual UPDES permittee is automatically terminated on the effective date of the individual permit or the date of authorization for coverage under the alternative general permit, whichever the case may be. When an individual UPDES permit is denied to a discharger otherwise subject to this Permit or the discharger is denied for coverage under an alternative UPDES general permit, the applicability of this Permit to the
Utah Division of Water Quality General Permit No. UTR 300000 Part 2

individual UPDES permittee is automatically terminated on the date of such denial, unless otherwise specified by the Executive Secretary.

- 2.4 <u>Continuation of the Expired General Permit</u>. This Permit expires on June 30, 2013. However, an expired general permit shall continue in force and effect after the expiration date until a new general permit is issued. If a discharger was eligible for and permitted under this Permit, and this Permit expires, the discharger will remain covered by this Permit until the earliest of:
  - 2.4.1. One hundred twenty days after re-issuance or replacement of this Permit;
  - 2.4.2. The discharger submits a Notice of Termination in compliance with this Permit;
  - 2.4.3. The discharger is issued an individual permit for the project's discharges; or
  - 2.4.4. 180 days after the Executive Secretary makes a formal decision not to reissue or replace this Permit, at which time the discharger must seek coverage under an alternative general permit or an individual permit.

#### PART 3. STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLANS

- 3.1. <u>SWPPP required</u>. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") shall be developed for each construction project covered by this Permit prior to submission of an NOI. A SWPPP shall be prepared in accordance with good engineering practices. It is recommended that the plan be signed by a Professional Engineer (P.E.) registered in the State. The SWPPP shall identify potential sources of pollution which may reasonably be expected to affect the quality of storm water discharges from the construction site, shall describe and ensure the implementation of practices which will be used to reduce the pollutants in storm water discharges associated with construction activity at the construction site and to assure compliance with the terms and conditions of this Permit, Permittees must implement the SWPPP as written or modified from commencement of construction until final stabilization is complete and an NOT has been submitted. (This provision is not intended to address the potential liability of a Permittee or other current or former operator or owner in the event of a discharge of pollution from the property of an individual homeowner.)
- 3.2. SWPPP Location, Availability, Revision, and Signature.
  - 3.2.1. <u>SWPPP Location</u>. A copy of the SWPPP, including a copy of the Permit, the NOI, and any amendments to the SWPPP, shall be retained on-site at the site which generates the storm water discharge in accordance with this Part 3.2 and with Part 5.10 of this Permit. If the site is inactive or does not have an onsite location adequate to store the copy of the SWPPP, reasonable local access to a copy of the SWPPP during normal working hours (e.g., at a local library or government building), must be provided and the location of the SWPPP, along with a contact phone number, shall be posted on site at a publicly-accessible location. For linear construction projects, such as pipelines, the posted notice shall be located at a publicly accessible location near the active part of the construction project.
  - 3.2.2. <u>SWPPP Availability</u>. The Permittee shall make the copy of the SWPPP that is kept on-site or kept locally available for review upon request to the Executive Secretary; EPA; other local agencies approving sediment and erosion plans, grading plans, or storm water management plans; local government officials; or to the operators of a municipal separate storm sewer receiving discharges from the site. The Permittee need not provide a free copy of the SWPPP to these entities upon request, but if it chooses not to do so, it shall keep two copies of the SWPPP, in its entirety, and shall allow these entities to borrow one to make a copy at their own expense.
  - 3.2.3. <u>Original SWPPP</u>. If requested by the Executive Secretary, the original SWPPP, including any previous versions requested, shall be provided to the Executive Secretary within five working days of the request. The original provided shall be signed in accordance with Part 5.16 of this Permit.
  - 3.2.4. <u>SWPPP Availability to the Public</u>. The Permittee shall also make a copy of the SWPPP available to the public to review at reasonable times during regular business hours. Advance notice by the public of the desire to view the SWPPP may be required, not to exceed two working days. The Permittee need not provide a free copy of the SWPPP to members of the public, but if it chooses not to do so, it shall

keep two copies of the SWPPP, in its entirety, and shall allow members of the public to borrow one to make a copy at their own expense.

- 3.2.5. <u>Compelled Revisions</u>. The Executive Secretary, or an authorized representative of the Executive Secretary, may notify the Permittee (co-Permittees) at any time that the SWPPP does not meet one or more of the minimum requirements of this Part 3. Such notification shall identify those provisions of the Permit which are not being met by the SWPPP, and identify which provisions of the SWPPP require modifications in order to meet the minimum requirements of this Part 3. Within 7 days of such notification from the Executive Secretary, (or as otherwise provided by the Executive Secretary), or authorized representative, the Permittee shall make the required changes to the SWPPP and shall submit to the Executive Secretary a written certification that the changes have been made. The Executive Secretary may take appropriate enforcement action for the period of time the Permittee was operating under a SWPPP that did not meet the minimum requirements of the Permit.
- 3.2.6. All SWPPPs must be signed and certified in accordance with Part 5.16 of this Permit.
- 3.3. Keeping SWPPPs Current.
  - 3.3.1. The Permittee shall amend the SWPPP whenever there is a change in design, construction, operation, or maintenance, which has a significant effect on the discharge of pollutants to the waters of the State and which has not otherwise been addressed in the SWPPP.
  - 3.3.2. The Permittee shall amend the SWPPP whenever inspections or investigations by site operators, local, state, or federal officials indicate the SWPPP is proving ineffective in eliminating or significantly minimizing pollutants from sources identified under Part 3.5.1 of this Permit, or is otherwise not achieving the general objectives of controlling pollutants in storm water discharges associated with construction activity.
  - 3.3.3. The Permittee shall amend the SWPPP whenever a new owner/operator becomes responsible for implementing all or part of the SWPPP, as further described in Part 3.4 and Part 4.3 of this Permit.
  - 3.3.4. The following records of activities shall be maintained as part of the SWPPP: a. Dates when major grading activities occur;
    - b. Dates when construction activities temporarily or permanently cease on a portion of or all of the site; and
    - c. Dates when stabilization measures are initiated.
  - 3.3.5. Once an area has been finally stabilized, the Permittee may identify this area in the SWPPP and no further SWPPP or inspection requirements shall apply to that area.
- 3.4. <u>More than one Permittee</u>. A SWPPP may identify more than one Permittee and may specify the responsibilities of each Permittee by task, area, and/or timing. Permittees may coordinate and prepare more than one SWPPP to accomplish this. However, in the event there is a requirement under the SWPPP for which responsibility is ambiguous or is not included in the SWPPP(s), each Permittee shall be responsible for implementation of that requirement. Each Permittee is also responsible for assuring that its activities do not render another Permittee's controls ineffective.

- 3.5. <u>Contents of SWPPP</u>. The SWPPP shall include the following items:
  - 3.5.1. <u>Site Description</u>. Each SWPPP shall provide a description of pollutant sources and other information as indicated:
    - a. A description of the nature of the construction activity;
    - b. A description of the intended sequence of major activities which disturb soils for major portions of the site (e.g. grubbing, excavation, grading, utilities, and infrastructure installation);
    - c. Estimates of the total area of the site and the total area of the site that is expected to be disturbed by excavation, grading, or other activities, including areas for construction support;
    - d. An estimate of the runoff coefficient of the site after construction activities are completed and existing data describing the soil or the quality of any discharge from the site;
    - e. A general location map (e.g. portion of a city or county map or similar scale) and a site map indicating:
      - 1) drainage patterns and approximate slopes anticipated after major grading activities;
      - 2) construction boundaries and a description of existing vegetation prior to grading activities;
      - 3) areas of soil disturbance, and areas of no disturbance;
      - 4) the location of major structures and nonstructural controls identified in the SWPPP;
      - 5) Locations of areas used for construction support;
      - 6) the location of areas where stabilization practices are expected to occur;
      - 7) the location of surface waters (including wetlands); and
      - 8) locations where storm water is discharged or will discharge to a surface water;
    - f. A description of any discharge associated with industrial activity other than construction at the site (including storm water discharges from dedicated portable asphalt plants and dedicated portable concrete plants), whether or not those discharges are covered by the Permit; and the location of that activity;
    - g. The name of the receiving water(s), and aerial extent of wetland acreage at the site; and
    - h. A copy of this Permit.
  - 3.5.2. <u>Controls</u>. The SWPPP shall employ best management practices to control pollutants in storm water discharges. Each plan shall include a description of appropriate controls and measures that will be implemented during construction activity and while the site is unstabilized. The plan must clearly describe for each major activity identified in Part 3.5.1(b) appropriate control measures and the timing during the construction process that the measures will be implemented. The description and implementation of controls shall address the following minimum components: a. Erosion and Sediment Controls.
    - 1) Short and Long Term Goals and Criteria:
      - A) The construction-phase erosion and sediment controls should be designed to retain sediment on site to the maximum extent

practicable.

- B) All control measures must be properly selected, installed, and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications and good engineering practices. If periodic inspections or other information indicates a control has been used inappropriately, incorrectly, or is ineffective the Permittee must replace or modify the control for site situations.
- C) If sediments escape the construction site, off-site accumulations of sediment must be removed at a frequency sufficient to minimize the possibility of offsite impacts such as fugitive sediments washing into storm sewers by the next rain or posing a safety hazard to users of public streets.
- D) Sediment must be removed from sediment traps or sedimentation ponds when design capacity has been reduced by 50%.
- E) Litter, construction debris, and construction chemicals exposed to storm water shall be picked up prior to anticipated storm events (e.g. forecasted by local weather reports), or otherwise prevented from becoming a pollutant source for storm water discharges (e.g. screening outfalls, picked up daily, etc.).
- F) Offsite material storage areas (also including overburden and stockpiles of dirt, etc.) used solely by the Permitted project are considered a part of the project and, unless a Permittee submits a separate NOI for such areas or they are subject to a separate UPDES permit, they shall be addressed in the SWPPP.
- 2) <u>Stabilization Practices</u>. A description of existing interim and permanent stabilization practices, including site-specific scheduling of the implementation of the practices. SWPPPs should ensure that existing vegetation is preserved where attainable and that disturbed portions of the site are stabilized. Stabilization practices may include: temporary seeding, permanent seeding, mulching, geo-textiles, sod stabilization, vegetative buffer strips, protection of trees, preservation of mature vegetation, and other appropriate measures. Use of impervious surfaces for stabilization should be avoided. Except as provided in paragraphs (A) and (B) below (Parts 3.5.2(a)(2)(A) and (B)), stabilization measures shall be initiated as soon as practicable in portions of the site where construction activities have temporarily or permanently ceased, but in no case more than 14 days after the construction activity in that portion of the site has temporarily or permanently ceased.
  - A) Where the initiation of stabilization measures by the 14th day after construction activity temporarily or permanently ceases is precluded by snow cover or frozen ground conditions, stabilization measures shall be initiated as soon as practicable.
  - B) Where construction activity on a portion of the site is temporarily ceased, and earth disturbing activities will be resumed within 21 days, temporary stabilization measures do not have to be initiated on that portion of the site.
- 3) <u>Structural Practices</u>. The permittee shall provide a description of

structural practices that divert flows from exposed soils, store flows or otherwise limit runoff and the discharge of pollutants from exposed areas of the site to the degree attainable. Such practices may include silt fences, earth dikes, drainage swales, sediment traps, check dams, subsurface drains, pipe slope drains, level spreaders, storm drain inlet protection, rock outlet protection, reinforced soil retaining systems, gabions, and temporary or permanent sediment basins. Placement of structural practices in floodplains should be avoided to the degree attainable. The installation of these devices may be subject to Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act ("CWA").

- A) 10 Acre Sediment Basin Requirement. Where attainable, for common drainage locations that serve areas with 10 or more acres disturbed at one time, the Permittee shall provide a temporary (or permanent) sediment basin that provides storage for a 10 year, 24 hour storm event, a calculated volume of runoff for disturbed acres drained, or equivalent control measures, until final stabilization of the site. Where calculations are not performed, a sediment basin providing 3,600 cubic feet of storage per acre drained (a 1 inch storm event), or equivalent control measures, shall be provided where attainable until final stabilization of the site. The required sizing of the sediment basin does not include flows from offsite areas and flows from onsite areas that are either undisturbed or have undergone final stabilization where such flows are diverted around both the disturbed area and the sediment basin. In determining whether installing a sediment basin is attainable, factors such as site soils, slope, and available area on site shall be considered. For drainage locations which serve 10 or more disturbed acres at one time and where a temporary sediment basin or equivalent controls is not attainable, smaller sediment basins and/or sediment traps (with comparable storage) must be used; or
  - (i) at a minimum, equivalent controls in silt fences, vegetative buffer strips, sod, mulch, geo-textiles, stepped check dams, pipe slope drains or other sediment or erosion controls are required for all erodible areas, down slope boundaries of the construction area and side slope boundaries deemed appropriate as dictated by individual site conditions; or
  - (ii) it can be shown that site meteorological conditions do not warrant equivalent storage during the time period the 10acres are destabilized (little or no chance of precipitation for the period of surface destabilization).
- B) <u>Less Than 10 Acre BMP Requirement</u>. For drainage locations serving less than 10 acres, sediment basins and/or sediment traps should be used. At a minimum, silt fences, vegetative buffer strips, or equivalent sediment controls are required for all down slope boundaries (and those side slope boundaries deemed appropriate as dictated by individual site conditions) of the construction area unless a sediment basin providing storage for

3,600 cubic feet of storage per acre drained is provided.

- b. Storm Water Management. Description of measures that will be installed during the construction process to control pollutants in storm water discharges that will occur after construction operations have been completed. Structural measures should be placed on upland soils to the degree attainable. The installation of these devices may be subject to Section 404 of the CWA. This Permit only addresses the installation of storm water management measures, and not the ultimate operation and maintenance of such structures after the construction activities have been completed and the site has undergone final stabilization. Permittees are only responsible for the installation and maintenance of storm water management measures prior to final stabilization of the site, and are not responsible for maintenance after storm water discharges associated with construction activity have been eliminated from the site. However, post-construction storm water BMPs that discharge pollutants from point sources once construction is completed, may in themselves, need authorization under a separate UPDES permit and are likely regulated under local municipal requirements.
  - 1) Such measures may include:
    - A) storm water detention structures (including wet ponds);
    - B) storm water retention structures;
    - C) flow-attenuation by use of open vegetated swales and natural depressions;
    - D) infiltration of runoff onsite; and
    - E) sequential systems (which combine several practices).
  - 2) The SWPPP shall include an explanation of the technical basis used to select the practices to control pollution where flows exceed predevelopment levels.
  - 3) Storm water velocity dissipation devices shall be placed at discharge locations and along the length of any outfall channel for the purpose of providing a non-erosive flow velocity from the structure to a water course so that the natural physical and biological characteristics and functions are maintained and protected. The objective is to minimize significant changes in the hydrological regime of the receiving water.
- c. Other Controls.
  - 1) <u>Waste Disposal</u>. No solid materials, including building materials, shall be discharged to waters of the State, except as authorized by a federal CWA Section 404 permits.
  - 2) <u>Off-site Tracking</u>. Off-site vehicle tracking of sediments and the generation of dust shall be minimized.
  - 3) <u>Septic, Waste, and Sanitary Sewer Disposal</u>. The SWPPP shall ensure and demonstrate compliance with applicable State and/or local waste disposal, sanitary sewer or septic system regulations.
  - 4) <u>Exposure to Construction Materials</u>. The SWPPP shall include a narrative description of practices to reduce pollutants from construction related materials which are stored onsite including an inventory of construction materials (including waste materials), storage practices to minimize exposure of the materials to storm water, and spill prevention and

response.

- 5) <u>Support Areas</u>. A description of pollutant sources from areas other than construction (including storm water discharges from dedicated portable asphalt plants and dedicated portable concrete plants), and a description of controls and measures that will be implemented at those sites.
- d. Other Laws and Requirements.
  - 1) <u>Local Storm Water Control Requirements</u>. This Permit does not relieve the Permittee from compliance with other laws effecting erosion and sediment control or requirements for the permanent storm water system. Where applicable, compliance efforts to these requirements should be reflected in the SWPPP.
  - <u>Threatened or Endangered Species & Historic Properties</u>. This Permit does not relieve the Permittee from compliance with Federal or State laws pertaining to threatened or endangered species or historic properties. Where applicable compliance efforts to these laws should be reflected in the SWPPP.
  - 3) <u>Variance of Permit Requirements</u>. Dischargers seeking alternative permit requirements shall submit an individual UPDES permit application in accordance with applicable law to the address indicated in Part 5.11 of this Permit, along with a description of why requirements in this Permit should not be applicable as a condition of a UPDES permit.
- 3.5.3. <u>Maintenance</u>. All vegetation, erosion and sediment control measures and other protective measures identified in the SWPPP shall be maintained in effective operating condition. A description of procedures to ensure the timely maintenance of these measures shall be identified in the SWPPP. Maintenance needs identified in inspections or by other means shall be accomplished before the next anticipated storm event, or as necessary to maintain the continued effectiveness of storm water controls. If maintenance prior to the next anticipated storm event is impracticable, maintenance must be scheduled and accomplished as soon as practicable.
- 3.5.4. Inspections.
  - a. Inspections must be conducted in accordance with one of the two schedules listed below. The Permittee shall specify in its SWPPP which schedule it will be following.
    - 1) At least once every 7 calendar days; or
    - 2) At least once every 14 calendar days and within 24 hours of the end of a storm event of 0.5 inches or greater.
  - b. Inspection frequency may be reduced to at least once every month if:
    - 1) The entire site is temporarily stabilized; or
    - 2) Runoff is unlikely due to winter conditions (e.g., site is covered with snow, ice, or the ground is frozen).
  - c. The inspection requirement is waived until one month before thawing conditions are expected to result in a discharge if all of the following requirements are met:
    - 1) The project is located in an area where frozen conditions are anticipated to continue for extended periods of time (i.e., more than one month);

Utah Division of Water Quality General Permit No. UTR 300000 Part 3

- 2) Land disturbance activities have been suspended; and
- 3) The beginning and ending dates of the waiver period are documented in the SWPPP.
- d. Inspections must be conducted by qualified personnel (provided by the operator or cooperatively by multiple operators). "Qualified personnel" means a person knowledgeable in the principles and practice of erosion and sediment controls who possesses the skills to assess conditions at the construction site that could impact storm water quality and to assess the effectiveness of any sediment and erosion control measures selected to control the quality of storm water discharges from the construction activity.
- e. Inspections must include all areas of the site disturbed by construction activity and areas used for storage of materials that are exposed to precipitation. Inspectors must look for evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering the storm water conveyance system. Sedimentation and erosion control measures identified in the SWPPP must be observed to ensure proper operation. Discharge locations must be inspected to ascertain whether erosion control measures are effective in preventing significant impacts to waters of the United States, where accessible. Where discharge locations are inaccessible, nearby downstream locations must be inspected to the extent that such inspections are practicable. Locations where vehicles enter or exit the site must be inspected for evidence of off-site sediment tracking.
- f. Inspections at construction sites involving utility line installation, pipeline construction, and other long, narrow, linear construction may be more limited if the areas described in Part 3.5.4(e) of this Permit are not reasonably accessible or could cause additional disturbance of soils and increase the potential for erosion. In these circumstances, controls must be inspected at the same frequency as other construction projects, but personnel may instead inspect controls along the construction site for 0.25 mile above and below each access point where a roadway, undisturbed right-of-way, or other similar feature intersects the construction site and allows access to the areas described above. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the conditions of the controls along each inspected 0.25 mile segment may be considered as representative of the condition of controls along that reach extending from the end of the 0.25 mile segment to either the end of the next 0.25 mile inspected segment, or to the end of the project, whichever occurs first.
- g. For each inspection required above, the inspector must complete an inspection report. At a minimum, the inspection report must include:
  - 1) The inspection date;
  - 2) Names, titles, and qualifications of personnel making the inspection;
  - 3) Weather information for the period since the last inspection (or since commencement of construction activity if the first inspection) including a best estimate of the beginning of each storm event, duration of each storm event, approximate amount of rainfall for each storm event (in inches), and whether any discharges occurred;
  - 4) Weather information and a description of any discharges occurring at the time of the inspection;
  - 5) Location(s) of discharges of sediment or other pollutants from the site;

- 6) Location(s) of BMPs that need to be maintained;
- 7) Location(s) of BMPs that failed to operate as designed or proved inadequate for a particular location;
- 8) Location(s) where additional BMPs are needed that did not exist at the time of inspection; and
- 9) Corrective action required including any changes to the SWPPP necessary and implementation dates.

h. A record of each inspection and of any actions taken in accordance with this Part 3 must be retained as part of the SWPPP for at least three years from the date that permit coverage expires or is terminated. The inspection reports must identify any incidents of non-compliance with the permit conditions. Where a report does not identify any incidents of non-compliance, the report must contain a certification that the construction project or site is in compliance with the SWPPP and this permit. The report must be signed in accordance with Part 5.16 of this Permit.

3.5.5. <u>Non-Storm Water Discharges</u>. Except for flows from fire fighting activities, sources of non-storm water listed in Part 1.5 of this Permit that are combined with storm water discharges associated with industrial activity must be identified in the SWPPP. The SWPPP shall identify and ensure the implementation of appropriate pollution prevention measures for the non-storm water component(s) of the discharge.

#### PART 4. TERMINATION/CHANGES IN OWNER/OPERATOR FOR SITE

- 4.1. <u>Termination of Coverage</u>: Permittees may or shall (as specified) terminate coverage under this Permit under the following conditions:
  - 4.1.1. <u>Completion of construction activities and site stabilization</u>: Permittees shall terminate coverage under this Permit by submitting a Notice of Termination ("NOT") within thirty days after completion of all construction activities, completion of final stabilization of all areas of the site as defined in Part 6.15. The NOT shall be submitted on the form specified by the Executive Secretary.
  - 4.1.2. <u>Partial completion of construction activities and site stabilization</u>: A Permittee who, as specified in Part 3.4 of this Permit, is identified in the SWPPP as responsible for a specific area may terminate coverage under this Permit by submitting an NOT within thirty days after completion, for that area, of all construction activities, completion of final stabilization of all areas for which the Permittee was responsible and that were disturbed. The NOT shall be submitted on the form specified by the Executive Secretary, and the Permittee shall indicate on the form that it is a partial NOT.
  - 4.1.3. <u>New responsible owner/operator</u>: A Permittee may terminate its coverage under this Permit by submitting an NOT if another party (or parties) assumes responsibility for all remaining SWPPP requirements. Termination of the Permittee's responsibilities under the SWPPP will not be final until the other party (or parties) submits an NOI. If the new responsible owner/operator fails to submit an NOI, the Permittee may complete termination by demonstrating to the Executive Secretary that it has entered into contracts that obligate the new owner/operator to undertake all remaining responsibilities under the SWPPP.
- 4.2. <u>Conditions for Submitting an NOT</u>: A Permittee may not submit an NOT unless it meets the requirements specified in Part 4.1. Appropriate enforcement actions may be taken if an NOT is submitted without these requirements having been met, and the Permittee may also continue to be responsible for any Permit violations.
- 4.3. <u>Updating the SWPPP</u>: If an NOT is submitted under Part 4.1.2 or 4.1.3, the SWPPP shall be updated by the remaining Permittee(s) to meet the requirements of Part 3.4 of the Permit.

#### PART 5. STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS

#### 5.1. Duty to Comply.

- 5.1.1. The Permittee must comply with all conditions of this Permit. Any Permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the Act and is grounds for enforcement action; for Permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application.
- 5.1.2. Penalties for Violations of Permit Conditions.

a. <u>Violations</u>. The Act provides that any person who violates the Act, Utah wastewater rules, or conditions of a permit issued under the Act is subject to a fine of \$10,000 per day.

b. <u>Willful or Gross Negligence</u>. The Act provides that any person who discharges a pollutant to waters of the State as a result of criminal negligence or who intentionally discharges is criminally liable and is subject to imprisonment and a fine of up to \$50,000 per day. Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115.

c. <u>False Statements</u>. The Act provides that any person who knowingly makes any false material statement, representation, or certification in any application, record, report, plan, or other document filed or required to be maintained under the Act, the rules, or this Permit, or who knowingly falsifies, tampers with, or renders inaccurate, any monitoring device or method required to be maintained under the Act shall upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than \$10,000 or by imprisonment for 6 months, or by both. Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115(4).

- 5.2. <u>Dut y to Reapply</u>. If a Permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after the expiration date of this permit, it must apply for and obtain a new permit except as provided in Part 2.4 of this Permit.
- 5.3. <u>Need to halt or reduce activity not a defense</u>. It shall not be a defense for a Permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this Permit.
- 5.4. <u>Duty to Mitigate</u>. The Permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of this Permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment.
- 5.5. <u>Duty to Provide Information</u>. The Permittee shall furnish to the Executive Secretary or an authorized representative, within a reasonable time, any information which is requested to determine compliance with this Permit. The Permittee must also furnish to the Executive Secretary or an authorized representative copies of records to be kept by this Permit.
- 5.6. <u>Other Information</u>. When the Permittee becomes aware that he or she failed to submit any relevant facts or submitted incorrect information in the Notice of Intent or in any other report to the Executive Secretary, he or she shall promptly submit such facts or information.

- 5.7. <u>Oil and Hazardous Substance Liability</u>. Nothing in this Permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the Permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties to which the Permittee is or may be subject under the "Act".
- 5.8. <u>Property Rights</u>. The issuance of this Permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, nor any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury to private property nor any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of Federal, State or local laws or regulations.
- 5.9. <u>Severability</u>. The provisions of this Permit are severable, and if any provision of this Permit, or the application of any provision of this Permit to any circumstance, is held invalid, the application of such provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this Permit shall not be affected thereby.
- 5.10. Record Retention.
  - 5.10.1. The Permittee shall retain copies of SWPPPs and all reports required by this Permit, and records of all data used to complete the Notice of Intent to be covered by this Permit, for a period of at least three years from the date that the site is finally stabilized. This period may be extended by request of the Executive Secretary at any time.
  - 5.10.2. After final stabilization of the construction site is complete, the SWPPP is no longer required to be maintained on site, but may be maintained by the Permittee(s) at its primary headquarters. Access to the SWPPP will continue as described in Part 3.2, however.
- 5.11. <u>Addresses</u>. All written correspondence under this permit shall be directed to the Division of Water Quality at the following address:

Department of Environmental Quality Division of Water Quality 288 North 1460 West PO Box 144870 Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-4870

- 5.12. State Laws.
  - 5.12.1. Nothing in this Permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the Permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties established pursuant to any applicable State law or regulation under authority preserved by Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-117.
  - 5.12.2. No condition of this Permit shall release the Permittee from any responsibility or requirements under other environmental statutes or regulations.
- 5.13. <u>Proper Operation and Maintenance</u>. The Permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the Permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions

of this Permit and with the requirements of SWPPPs. Proper operation and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures. Proper operation and maintenance requires the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems, installed by a Permittee only when necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the Permit.

- 5.14. <u>Inspection and Entry</u>. The Permittee shall allow, upon presentation of credentials, the Executive Secretary or an authorized representative:
  - 5.14.1. To enter upon the Permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of this Permit;
  - 5.14.2. Have access to and copy at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of this Permit;
  - 5.14.3. Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this Permit; and
  - 5.14.4. Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by law, any substances or parameters at any location.
- 5.15 Reopener Clause.
  - 5.15.1. <u>Reopener Due to Water Quality Impacts</u>. If there is evidence indicating that the storm water discharges authorized by this Permit cause, have the reasonable potential to cause or contribute to, a violation of a water quality standard, the discharger may be required to obtain an individual permit or an alternative general permit in accordance with Part 2.3 of this Permit or the Permit may be modified to include different limitations and/or requirements.
  - 5.15.2. <u>Reopener Guidelines</u>. Permit modification or revocation will be conducted according to UAC R317-8-5.6 and UAC R317-8-6.2.
  - 5.15.3. <u>Permit Actions</u>. This Permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of a request by the Permittee for a Permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any Permit condition.
- 5.16. Signatory Requirements.
  - 5.16.1. All Notices of Intent, SWPPPs, reports, certifications or information submitted to the Executive Secretary, or that this Permit requires be maintained by the Permittee, shall be signed as follows:
    - a. All Notices of Intent shall be signed as follows:
      - 1) For a corporation: by a responsible corporate officer. For the purpose of this section, a responsible corporate officer means: a president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation; or the manager of one or more manufacturing, production or operating facilities employing more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding \$25,000,000 (in second-quarter 1980 dollars) if authority to sign

documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures;

- 2) For a partnership of sole proprietorship: by a general partner or the proprietor, respectively; or
- 3) For a municipality, State, Federal, or other public agency: by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this section, a principal executive officer of a Federal agency includes (1) the chief executive officer of the agency, or (2) a senior executive officer having responsibility for the overall operations of a principal geographic unit of the agency (e.g. Regional Administrators of EPA).
- b. All reports required by the Permit and other information requested by the Executive Secretary or by an authorized representative of the Executive Secretary shall be signed by a person described above or by a duly authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if:
  - 1) The authorization is made in writing by a person described above and submitted to the Executive Secretary; and
  - 2) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for overall operation of the regulated site, facility or activity, such as the position of manager, operator, superintendent, or position of equivalent responsibility or an individual or position having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the company. (A duly authorized representative may thus be either a named individual or any individual occupying a named position).
- c. Certification. Any person signing documents under this Part 5.16 shall make the following certification:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

5.16.2. If a document is to be signed electronically, the Division's rules regarding electronic transactions govern.

#### PART 6. DEFINITIONS

As used in this Permit:

- 6.1. "Act" means the "Utah Water Quality Act"
- 6.2. "Best Management Practices" ("BMPs") means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants to waters of the State. BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage.
- 6.3. "Common plan of development or sale" means one plan for development or sale, separate parts of which are related by any announcement, piece of documentation (including a sign, public notice or hearing, sales pitch, advertisement, drawing, plat, blueprint, contract, permit application, zoning request, computer design, etc.), physical demarcation (including boundary signs, lot stakes, surveyor markings, etc.), or continuing obligation (including contracts) that identify the scope of the project. A plan may still be a common plan of development or sale even if it is taking place in separate stages or phases, is planned in combination with other construction activities, or is implemented by different owners or operators.
- 6.4. "Commencement of Construction" means the initial disturbance of soils associated with clearing, grading, or excavating activities or other construction activities.
- 6.5. "Construction activity" means soil disturbing activities such as clearing, grading, and excavating of land. The term also includes construction support activities.
- 6.6. "Construction support activities" means construction material and equipment storage and maintenance, concrete or asphalt batch plants, except as provided in Part 1.4.3 of this Permit.
- 6.7. "Control Measure" refers to any Best Management Practice or other method used to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants to waters of the State.
- 6.8. "CWA" means Clean Water Act or the Federal Water Pollution Control Act.
- 6.9. "Dedicated portable asphalt plant" means a portable asphalt plant that is located on or contiguous to a construction site and that provides asphalt only to the construction site that the plant is located on or adjacent to.
- 6.10. "Dedicated portable concrete plant" means a portable concrete plant that is located on or contiguous to a construction site and that provides concrete only to the construction site that the plant is located on or adjacent to.
- 6.11. "Discharge," when used without qualification, means the discharge of a pollutant.

- 6.12. "EPA" means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
- 6.13. "Eligible" means qualified for authorization to discharge storm water under this general permit.
- 6.14. "Executive Secretary" means Executive Secretary of the Utah Water Quality Board.
- 6.15. "Final Stabilization" means that all soil disturbing activities at the site have been completed, and that a uniform (e.g. evenly distributed, without large bare areas) perennial vegetative cover with a density of 70% of the native background vegetative cover for the area has been established on all unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures, or equivalent permanent stabilization measures (such as the use of riprap, gabions, or geo-textiles) have been employed. In some parts of the country, background native vegetation will cover less than 100% of the ground (e.g. arid areas). Establishing at least 70% of the natural cover of native vegetation meets the vegetative cover criteria for final stabilization. For example, if the native vegetation covers 50% of the ground, 70% of 50% would require 35% total cover for final stabilization. For individual lots in residential construction, final stabilization means that either the homebuilder has completed final stabilization as specified above, or the homebuilder has established temporary stabilization including perimeter controls for an individual lot prior to occupation of the home by the homeowner and has obligated the homeowner, by contract, to complete the requirements for final stabilization within two years.
- 6.16. "Indian Country" is defined as in 40 CFR §122.2 to mean:
  - 1. All land within the limits of any Indian reservation under the jurisdiction of the United States Government, notwithstanding the issuance of any patent, and, including rights-of-way running through the reservation;
  - 2. All dependent Indian communities within the borders of the United States whether within the originally or subsequently acquired territory thereof, and whether within or without the limits of a state; and
  - 3. All Indian allotments, the Indian titles to which have not been extinguished, including rights-of-ways running through the same.
- 6.17. "Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System" refers to all separate storm sewers that are owned or operated by the United States, a State, city, town, county, district, association, or other public body having jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, storm water, or other wastes, including special districts under State law such as a sewer districts, flood control districts or drainage districts, or similar entity that discharges to waters of the State.
- 6.18. "NOI" means notice of intent to be covered by this Permit.
- 6.19. "NOT" means notice of termination.
- 6.20. "Point Source" means any discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance, including but not limited to, any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation, landfill leachate collection system,

vessel or other floating craft from which pollutants are or may be discharged. This term does not include return flows from irrigated agriculture or agricultural storm water runoff.

- 6.21. "Runoff coefficient" means the fraction of total rainfall that will appear at conveyance as runoff.
- 6.22. "Site" means the land or water area where any "facility or activity" is physically located or conducted, including adjacent land used in connection with the facility or activity.
- 6.23. "Storm water" means storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage.
- 6.24. "Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" is defined in the Utah Administrative Code (UAC) R317-8-3.9(6)(c) & (d) and incorporated here by reference. Most relevant to this Permit is UAC R317-8-3.9(6)(d)10, which relates to construction activity including clearing, grading and excavation activities.
- 6.25. SWPPP means Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, referring to the plan required in Part 3 of this Permit.
- 6.26. "Total Maximum Daily Load" or "TMDL" means the sum of the individual wasteload allocations (WLAs) for point sources and load allocations (LAs) for nonpoint sources and natural background. If a receiving water has only one point source discharger, the TMDL is the sum of that point source WLA plus the LAs for any nonpoint sources of pollution and natural background sources, tributaries, or adjacent segments. TMDLs can be expressed in terms of either mass per time, toxicity, or other appropriate measure.
- 6.27. Waters of the State means all streams, lakes, ponds, marshes, water-courses, waterways, wells, springs, irrigation systems, drainage systems, and all other bodies or accumulations of water, surface and underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which are contained within, flow throw, or border upon this state or any portion thereof, except that bodies of water confined to and retained within the limits of private property, and which do not develop into or constitute a nuisance, or a public health hazard, or a menace to fish and wildlife, shall not be considered to be waters of the state (UAC R317-1-1.31).

f:\wp\stormwat\storm water construction permit\sw const final per package\general construction permit.doc

Appendix D – NOI

### **Appendix E - Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Form**

Inspector(s):\_\_\_\_\_Date:\_\_\_\_\_

Site Name and Location:\_\_\_\_\_

Current Weather Conditions:\_\_\_\_\_ Last 24 Hours:\_\_\_\_\_

BMP Designation	0.K	Not O.K.	BMP Condition, Corrective Action, General Notes
Construction Access Trackout? Street Clean?			
Soil Stabilization Signs of Erosion: Gullies? Slope Failures? Rills?			
Slope Protection Plastic Condition? Grass Growing? Hydroseed Condition? Matting?			
Perimeter Control Clearing Limits Marked? Silt Fences? Swales?			
Outlet Protection Stabilized?			
Storm water Detention And Monitoring			
BMP Maintenance			
Inlet Protection			

## Erosion and Sediment Control Inspection Form

### **Sediment Control**

BMP Designation	O.K	Not O.K.	BMP Condition, Corrective Action, General Notes
Dust Control			
Spill Prevention			
O a su all'il a su a f			
Condition of			
Discharge Water			
water			
Comments:			

# Appendix F – Corrective Action Log

Project Name: SWPPP Contact:

Inspection Date	Inspector Name(s)	Description of BMP Deficiency	Corrective Action Needed (including planned date/responsible person)	Date Action Taken/Responsible person

# Appendix G – SWPPP Amendment Log

Project Name: SWPPP Contact:

Amendment No.	Description of the Amendment	Date of Amendment	Amendment Prepared by [Name(s) and Title]

## Appendix H – Subcontractor Certifications/Agreements

#### SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

Project Number:	 
Project Title:	
Operator(s):	

As a subcontractor, you are required to comply with the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for any work that you perform on-site. Any person or group who violates any condition of the SWPPP may be subject to substantial penalties or loss of contract. You are encouraged to advise each of your employees working on this project of the requirements of the SWPPP. A copy of the SWPPP is available for your review at the office trailer.

Each subcontractor engaged in activities at the construction site that could impact stormwater must be identified and sign the following certification statement:

# I certify under the penalty of law that I have read and understand the terms and conditions of the SWPPP for the above designated project and agree to follow the BMPs and practices described in the SWPPP.

This certification is hereby signed in reference to the above named project:

Company: \_\_\_\_\_

Address: \_\_\_\_\_

Telephone Number: \_\_\_\_\_

Type of construction service to be provided:

Signature:

Title:

Date:

# Appendix I – Grading and Stabilization Activities Log

Project Name: SWPPP Contact:

Date Grading Activity Initiated	Description of Grading Activity	Date Grading Activity Ceased (Indicate Temporary or Permanent)	Date When Stabilization Measures are Initiated	Description of Stabilization Measure and Location

# Appendix J – SWPPP Training Log

	Stormwater	Po	Ilution Prevention	n Training Log
Proj	ect Name:			
Proj	ect Location:			
Instr	uctor's Name(s):			
Instr	uctor's Title(s):			
Cou	rse Location:			Date:
Cou	rse Length (hours):			
Stor	mwater Training Topic: (check a	s app	propriate)	
	Erosion Control BMPs		Emergency Procedure	es
	Sediment Control BMPs		Good Housekeeping I	3MPs
	Non-Stormwater BMPs			
Spe	cific Training Objective:			

Attendee Roster: (attach additional pages as necessary)

No.	Name of Attendee	Company	
1			
2			
3			
4			
5			
6			
7			
8			
9			
10			

# Appendix K – Delegation of Authority Form

#### **Delegation of Authority**

I, \_\_\_\_\_\_ (name), hereby designate the person or specifically described position below to be a duly authorized representative for the purpose of overseeing compliance with environmental requirements, including the Construction General Permit, at the

\_\_\_\_\_ construction site. The designee is authorized to sign any reports, stormwater pollution prevention plans and all other documents required by the permit.

 (name of person or position)
 (company)
 (address)
 (city, state, zip)
 (phone)

By signing this authorization, I confirm that I meet the requirements to make such a designation as set forth in UTR 300000, and that the designee above meets the definition of a "duly authorized representative" as set forth in UTR 300000.

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

Name:		
Company:		
Title:		
Signature:		
olghatare.		
Date:		



## **Natural Resources of Concern**

This resource list is to be used for planning purposes only — it is not an official species list.

Endangered Species Act species list information for your project is available online and listed below for the following FWS Field Offices:

Utah Ecological Services Field Office 2369 WEST ORTON CIRCLE, SUITE 50 WEST VALLEY CITY, UT 84119 (801) 975-3330 http://www.fws.gov http://www.fws.gov/utahfieldoffice/

**Project Name:** 

Silver Summit



# **Natural Resources of Concern**

### **Project Location Map:**



### **Project Counties:**

Weber, UT

### Geographic coordinates (Open Geospatial Consortium Well-Known Text, NAD83):

MULTIPOLYGON (((-111.7323787 41.2460483, -111.7278297 41.246016, -111.7279606 41.2424681, -111.7323787 41.2423052, -111.7323787 41.2460483)))

### **Project Type:**

Development



# **Natural Resources of Concern**

### Endangered Species Act Species List (<u>USFWS Endangered Species Program</u>).

There are a total of 4 threatened, endangered, or candidate species on your species list. Species on this list should be considered in an effects analysis for your project and could include species that exist in another geographic area. For example, certain fishes may appear on the species list because a project could cause downstream effects on the species. Critical habitats listed under the **Has Critical Habitat** column may or may not lie within your project area. See the **Critical habitats within your project area** section below for critical habitat that lies within your project area. Please contact the designated FWS office if you have questions.

#### Species that should be considered in an effects analysis for your project:

Birds	Status		Has Critical Habitat	Contact
Greater sage-grouse ( <i>Centrocercus urophasianus</i> ) Population: entire	Candidate	species info		Utah Ecological Services Field Office
Yellow-Billed Cuckoo ( <i>Coccyzus americanus</i> ) Population: Western U.S. DPS	Proposed Threatened	species info		Utah Ecological Services Field Office
Fishes				
June sucker ( <i>Chasmistes liorus</i> ) Population: Entire	Endangered	species info	Final designated critical habitat	Utah Ecological Services Field Office
Mammals	2			
Canada Lynx ( <i>Lynx canadensis</i> ) Population: (Contiguous U.S. DPS)	Threatened	species info	Final designated critical habitat	Utah Ecological Services Field Office

#### Critical habitats within your project area:

There are no critical habitats within your project area.

### FWS National Wildlife Refuges (USFWS National Wildlife Refuges Program).

There are no refuges found within the vicinity of your project.



# **Natural Resources of Concern**

### FWS Migratory Birds (<u>USFWS Migratory Bird Program</u>).

Most species of birds, including eagles and other raptors, are protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (16 U.S.C. 703). Bald eagles and golden eagles receive additional protection under the <u>Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act</u> (16 U.S.C. 668). The Service's <u>Birds of Conservation Concern (2008)</u> report identifies species, subspecies, and populations of all migratory nongame birds that, without additional conservation actions, are likely to become listed under the Endangered Species Act as amended (16 U.S.C 1531 et seq.).

Migratory bird information is not available for your project location.

#### NWI Wetlands (<u>USFWS National Wetlands Inventory</u>).

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service is the principal Federal agency that provides information on the extent and status of wetlands in the U.S., via the National Wetlands Inventory Program (NWI). In addition to impacts to wetlands within your immediate project area, wetlands outside of your project area may need to be considered in any evaluation of project impacts, due to the hydrologic nature of wetlands (for example, project activities may affect local hydrology within, and outside of, your immediate project area). It may be helpful to refer to the USFWS National Wetland Inventory website. The designated FWS office can also assist you. Impacts to wetlands and other aquatic habitats from your project may be subject to regulation under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, or other State/Federal Statutes. Project Proponents should discuss the relationship of these requirements to their project with the Regulatory Program of the appropriate U.S. Army Corps of Engineers District.

Wetlands intersect or are near your project area, but wetland type and area information typically displayed here is not available for them.

#### Reeve & Associates, Inc.

920 Chambers Street, Suite 14 Ogden, Utah 84403 801-621-3100 Fax 801-621-2666 website: www. reeve-assoc.com